
 

 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Lleoliad: 

Hybrid - Ystafell Bwyllgora 4 Tŷ Hywel a 

fideogynadledda drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 19 Hydref 

2022 

Amser: 09.15

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Naomi Stocks 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru

------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat  

(09.00 - 09.15) 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.15)   

 

2 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 

3 

(09.15 - 10.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 37)  

Andy Bell, Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr, y Ganolfan Iechyd Meddwl  

Sian Taylor, Arweinydd Clinigol ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl 

Sylfaenol Plant a’r Glasoed, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan   

Angela Lodwick, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl Sylfaenol Plant a’r 

Glasoed a Therapïau Seicolegol, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Richard Maggs, Cyfarwyddwr Meddygol Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl 

Oedolion, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Bae Abertawe 

Andrea Parry, Arweinydd Tîm, Iechyd Da: Tîm Iechyd Ieuenctid, Bwrdd Iechyd 

Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Emma Haggerty, Arweinydd Clinigol Anhwylderau Bwyta, Bwrdd Iechyd 

Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 

 

 

 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

y Ganolfan Iechyd Meddwl  - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 1 (Saesneg yn unig) 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 2 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Hywel Dda University Health Board  CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 3 (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

 

Egwyl  

(10.15 - 10.25) 

 

3 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 

4 

(10.25 - 11.25) (Tudalennau 38 - 51)  

Dr Liz Forty, Coleg Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion Cymru  

Dr Julie Keely, Coleg Brenhinol yr Ymarferwyr Cyffredinol  

Dr Kim Dienes, Darlithydd Seicoleg, Prifysgol Abertawe  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Coleg Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion Cymru - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 4 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Coleg Brenhinol yr Ymarferwyr Cyffredinol - CYPE(6)-22-20 - Papur 5 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

 

4 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 

5 

(11.30 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 52 - 61)  

Simon Jones, Pennaeth Polisi ac Ymgyrchoedd, Mind Cymru  

Dominic Smithies, Arweinydd Dylanwadu ac Eiriolaeth, Student Minds  

Dogfennau atodol: 



 

 

Mind Cymru - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 6 (Saesneg yn unig) 

Student Minds - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 7 (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

5 Papurau i'w nodi 

(12.30)   

 

5.1 Blaenraglen Waith 

 (Tudalennau 62 - 63)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Bennaeth Oxfam Cymru a Chyfarwyddwr Rhwydwaith 

Cydraddoldeb Menywod Cymru - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

 

5.2 Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Ysgolion 

 (Tudalennau 64 - 65)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at Weinidog y 

Gymraeg ac Addysg - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 2 

 

5.3 Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23 

 (Tudalennau 66 - 67)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol - CYPE(6)-20-

22 - Papur i'w nodi 3 

 

5.4 Cyfres arholiadau'r Haf 2022 

 (Tudalennau 68 - 70)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Brif Weithredwr Cymwysterau Cymru - CYPE(6)-20-2 - Papur i'w 

nodi 4 



 

 

5.5 Gwasanaethau i blant sydd wedi bod mewn gofal: archwilio diwygio radical 

 (Tudalennau 71 - 72)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg at y Gweinidog 

Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a’r Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 5 

 

5.6 Blaenraglen Waith 

 (Tudalennau 73 - 74)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr ar y cyd gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol, y Dirprwy 

Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a'r Dirprwy Weinidog Iechyd Meddwl a 

Llesiant - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 6 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod hwn. 

(12.30)   

 

7 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - trafod y dystiolaeth 

(12.30 - 12.35)   

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



CYPE(6)-20-22 – Papur 1 

 

Papurau ymchwil gan y Ganolfan Iechyd Meddwl 

 

Student Space evaluation: https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/student-

space 

Making the grade: https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/making-grade 

Finding our way: https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/finding-our-own-

way 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 25

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.centreformentalhealth.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Fstudent-space&data=05%7C01%7CHasera.Khan%40senedd.wales%7C56cd1eb6a5624cc519f108daaaa9f23f%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638009944132582279%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=M9ZBuGv2SpUILi9IOGjClrG7u1xP1mCr%2BlElHxXs0U8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.centreformentalhealth.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Fstudent-space&data=05%7C01%7CHasera.Khan%40senedd.wales%7C56cd1eb6a5624cc519f108daaaa9f23f%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638009944132582279%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=M9ZBuGv2SpUILi9IOGjClrG7u1xP1mCr%2BlElHxXs0U8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.centreformentalhealth.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Fmaking-grade&data=05%7C01%7CHasera.Khan%40senedd.wales%7C56cd1eb6a5624cc519f108daaaa9f23f%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638009944132582279%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6rnG81Xpo%2FgOkXrmAXgrDU5rKvNSUr%2BkEwtBZDFJoeo%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.centreformentalhealth.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Ffinding-our-own-way&data=05%7C01%7CHasera.Khan%40senedd.wales%7C56cd1eb6a5624cc519f108daaaa9f23f%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638009944132582279%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VPeWiRQ1mZ1EUMn%2FsOp72mHrw9xuCljS6i1ZmfusSL4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.centreformentalhealth.org.uk%2Fpublications%2Ffinding-our-own-way&data=05%7C01%7CHasera.Khan%40senedd.wales%7C56cd1eb6a5624cc519f108daaaa9f23f%7C38dc5129340c45148a044e8ef2771564%7C0%7C0%7C638009944132582279%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VPeWiRQ1mZ1EUMn%2FsOp72mHrw9xuCljS6i1ZmfusSL4%3D&reserved=0


CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 2 

Cyflwynwyd yr ymateb hwn i ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

i  gymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch 

This response was submitted to the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee inquiry into Mental Health support in Higher Education  

 

Ymateb gan: Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 

Response from: Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

Nodwch eich barn mewn perthynas â chylch gorchwyl yr ymchwiliad. | Record 

your views against the inquiry’s terms of reference.  

 

1. Maint yr angen | Extent of need 

This section refers exclusively to Higher Education in ABUHB public health colleagues 

have been linking with the student’s union to produce resources which are available 

on the Melo website.  

The focus of some of this work has been on the needs of the LGBTQ+ student group 

who have been proactive in identifying the needs of that student population. 

Across the age range the impact of the social distancing and isolation associated 

with Covid has affected different young people in different ways, some report 

missing out on face to face – peer and classroom opportunities. Others seem to have 

enjoyed the remote learning but have found it more anxiety provoking as activities 

revert to face to face provision. 

 

2. Adnabod a darpariaeth | Identification and provision 

How effectively higher education providers promote an ethos of universal good 

mental health and well-being to all students, and whether this an integral part of the 

learning experience and interactions with staff.  

The work undertaken by ABUHB public health and Coleg Gwent has been publicised 

widely on the Coleg Gwent social media channels to raise awareness for staff and 

students of the resources. The public health team have the Gwent Connect 5 training 

Tudalen y pecyn 26

https://senedd.cymru/pwyllgorau/y-pwyllgor-plant-pobl-ifanc-ac-addysg/
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662


package for staff across health and local authority to undertake a short module (1.5 

days) around understanding how to talk about mental health and wellbeing. 

How effectively the sector ensures early identification of students who need 

individual and targeted support:  

YP in schools and FE 

In ABUHB Schools InReach Practioners are working closely with schools to support 

teachers and schools’ staff to identify those young people who need additional 

support. They have a specific, named CAMHS professional attached to each school. 

The staff can contact In Reach to arrange a consultation regarding any young person 

in the school. Any discussion regarding children in sixth form and over 18 would 

require consent from the young person prior to seeking consultation.  

How effectively the Higher education sector and NHS work together to deliver the 

right mental Health support for individual students and when they need it:  

YP in schools and FE 

YP in schools and FE 

In ABUHB Schools InReach Practioners are working closely with schools to support 

teachers and schools’ staff to identify those young people who need additional 

support. They have a specific, named CAMHS professional attached to each school. 

The staff can contact In Reach to arrange a consultation regarding any young person 

in the school. Any discussion regarding children in sixth form and over 18 would 

require consent from the young person prior to seeking consultationAny staff 

working in schools or colleges who are supporting 16+ students are also able to 

access all the varied In-Reach training courses.  

Are there specific issues with access to NHS mental health support for individual 

students and when they need it: - transitioning from CAMHS to adult services – 

issues of sharing data? 

Young people known to CAMHS, and actively working with the service, would have 

the opportunity for care to be discussed as required with any professional to whom 

they transition as part of a move once 18. This is usually local adult services and 

young people are usually 18+ by the time they move away to Higher education and 

start changing GP.   

In the last few years, no one has approached the team about someone who is past 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



their 18th birthday.  If this request were made, on the basis of an anonymous 

conversation, In Reach would direct the teacher to some resources that the young 

person could use (e.g. Silver cloud).  

Specific transition arrangements have been made for YP with Eating disorders, this 

starts well before their 18 Birthday at around 17.5 years and links are made between 

the adult ED clinicians and the CAMHS team, joint sessions are planned and the YP is 

prepared for the handover of services. Some young people have co-produced a 

preparing for adulthood group which they attend as part of the move from the 

CAMHS to adult clinical models in ED care.  Seamless care can become a little more 

complicated if the YP is planning to go away to study in HE but there are lots of 

examples where on a case-by-case basis this has been discussed and care plans 

discussed between clinicians to ensure a smooth transition. With Clinical teams being 

flexible around their offer to support the YP. 

How well the wider post- 16 education sector works to promote good mental health 

particularly with regard to transitions. 

In Reach Consultation post 16: using the same model of approach as we do with our 

secondary schools, a fortnightly x2 hour consultation slot has been booked for each 

term.  This is for staff at the college (learning coaches etc) to access an In-Reach 

practitioner for advice around a young person's emotional wellbeing and mental 

health.   In Reach have adapted the parent/young person's consent form for 

consultation so that our 16- and 17-year-olds can consent to their name being 

discussed in consultation (and consequently entered onto electronic records to share 

information in CAMHS).  Staff can also ask for more general advice around themes 

and topics of interest, as well as anonymous consultations.  The team have been very 

clear with staff that they can only discuss 16- and 17-year-olds in FE colleges. It does 

seem that extending the In Reach offer to all age students in FE is needed. 

Training: all staff who work at the campus can access the online training modules In 

Reach offer.   They can also access bespoke training delivery, face-to-face, at the 

school or college (FE) campus as long as they have a minimum of 6 staff who will 

attend. 

 

3. Polisïau, deddfwriaeth a chyllid Llywodraeth Cymru | Welsh Government 

policy, legislation and funding 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



It is a positive step forward that funding for further education settings will now come 

under one funding stream, with a unifying strategic vision, there is however little 

reference made to establishing a whole system approach for mental and health and 

wellbeing. 

Within ABUHB we have shaped our whole school approach for school communities 

using the Welsh Government Framework for Embedding a Whole School Approach 

to emotional health and wellbeing. This provision is available to all school 

communities, so will include comprehensive where there is a sixth form provision. 

Central to this approach is the importance of listening to young people and staff to 

understand the unique wellbeing challenges facing the community. It is through 

using inquiry-based approaches that communities are able to identify their wellbeing 

needs and, with the support of the Whole School approach for wellbeing team, 

design a whole system approach which is tailored to the needs of the community. 

The elements of a whole school approach will include a commitment to staff 

wellbeing, access to advice and support, access to specialist consultation (ie. InReach) 

signposting to other agencies for more specific support, opportunities for play, 

interaction, and fun. A whole school approach to wellbeing should increase students 

and staff sense of safety, belonging, efficacy, agency, and care. 

 

4. Argymhellion ar gyfer newid | Recommendations for change 

The School Health Research Network SHRN data collection only covers young people 

up to school year 11. It does not gather information from the school years 12 and 13 

(16+). Clinicians working in both adults, CAMHS and school based services all 

expressed a view that there is a gap in understanding the mental health and 

wellbeing needs of these post 16 learners. 

To really understand the transition issues at age 18 and from FE to HE a similar data 

collection in first year in HE would be most valuable. 

Silver Cloud has been well received in ABUHB and the uptake reflects this. The data 

collection does not ask about education status, so it is not possible to extract form 

the report what percentage of the YP accessing the resource are students. 

 

5. Arall | Other  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 3 

Cyflwynwyd yr ymateb hwn i ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

i  gymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch 

This response was submitted to the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee inquiry into Mental Health support in Higher Education  

 

Ymateb gan: Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Response from: Hywel Dda University Health Board 

Nodwch eich barn mewn perthynas â chylch gorchwyl yr ymchwiliad. | Record 

your views against the inquiry’s terms of reference.  

 

1. Maint yr angen | Extent of need 

 Hywel Dda University HB  have significant  challenge in respect of the rurality 

and geographical challenge for many students compounded by a lack of 

regular transport in many areas.  

 

 Transition from school to adult education can be a stressful and disorientating 

experience for young people who have to negotiate the anxieties of living 

independently ,  having to budget, manage independent living and develop 

new friendships and peer relationships.  

 

 Having to register in a new area with a GP may be challenging especially for 

those  who already have a disorder or having treatment with the different 

services available or even no service in some areas due to variation in service 

provision or smaller Health Boards etc  

 

 Within HDUHB,  we have established an All Age Single Point of contact( SPOC) 

also known as NHS 111 Option 2  and  the service have established  links  with 

Pembrokeshire college  where the team have attended their open days, 

engaged with the new cohort of students and care providers to highlight the 

referral pathway ( self referral and/ or professional referral) in an attempt to de 

stigmatise mental health.  

The adult MH team are also attending their World Mental Health Day October 

10th to promote the service .  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30

https://senedd.cymru/pwyllgorau/y-pwyllgor-plant-pobl-ifanc-ac-addysg/
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662


The plan is to replicate this in Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion ,to promote 

the new service and also to ensure the quick access 

The  NHS  111 service is also looking at business cards to be located in the 

colleges and also visual posters so students can access the service to have 

support when required ,and inform students when this will be a 24-hour 

service. 

 

 HDUHB has in place a  dedicated  team experienced in working across 

schools, colleges and the universities (Up to age 25)  called Iechyd Da  who 

would also utilise the professional line for support and advise when required 

.The  Iechyd Da team are based within the college setting which enables a 

close working relationship   

 

Hywel Dda University Health Board (HDUHB) Youth Health Team (YHT) was 

first established in 2008 as a multi-professional team to work proactively with 

vulnerable young people throughout Carmarthenshire.    

 

The aim was to reduce health inequalities and address health issues which 

may be a barrier to their involvement in education, training and employment. 

In 2014, the team expanded the service to Ceredigion.  

 

Iechyd Da works with vulnerable young people up to 25 years of age, across 

the counties of Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion.  We focus on those who are 

not in school e.g. those who are not in mainstream education (alternative 

curriculum and electively home educated), those who are NEET (not in 

education, employment or training), Looked After Children and young people 

and care leavers, those who are supported by the Youth Support Service 

(including Youth Justice) and, those who are homeless or vulnerably housed. 

 

 In Aberystwyth,  we have a Link Mental Health Practitioner  who liaises with 

the University  and the Practice Development Nurse . There is a plan to 

establish a pathway and improve links with Aberystwyth university to support 

students and reconnect with the pathways  

 

 There are certain groups of young people who will face additional pressures , 

those with known mental health disorders may find their mental health and 

wellbeing challenged due to additional stressors,  people with Autism or 

Neurodiverse conditions will also face additional pressure and may struggle to 

adjust to the different experience University brings. Transition from S-CAMHS 

to Adult Mental Health services can be extremely challenging as these young 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



people may find that not only are they moving to a different area they also 

have to navigate the complexities of new health services and finding support. 

 

 The effect of the Covid-19 pandemic has brought significant challenges  for 

students with disruption to education and life in general . Disruption to 

normal developmental activities such as leaving home and going to university 

is seen as a particular transition and with this not happening many young 

adults have missed out on key life events which may have an impact on their 

future resilience and opportunities. The disruption to young people in college 

/ university must be acknowledged and prevented from occurring in the 

future. We are seeing higher levels of mental ill health  /disorder  in the 

community , increased referrals to mental health services ,higher complexity 

and  acuity compounded by the Covid-19 impact which will remain evident for 

many years.  

 

 During the Covid-19 pandemic, and in line with government guidelines as to 

how we were able to work with young people and their families whilst 

maintaining social distancing, our team members had to adapt and adjust 

their working practices accordingly as the college where our office is based 

closed to all staff from the morning of March 24th  2020. 

 

 In addition to the considerable referrals received regarding the emotional 

health and wellbeing of children and young people, we received referrals for 

young people who found aspects of lockdown and restrictions challenging 

and, subsequently, found the return to education and training overwhelming.  

This was compounded by additional life stresses eg bereavement, parental 

separation, reduction in family income and unstable housing. 

 

During the pandemic Iechyd Da Youth Health Team: 

1. Offered distance based support utilising the technology available ie Teams, 

Whatsapp and Zoom 

2. Offered 1:1 support in line with government guidelines and Health Board 

governance 

3. Continued to offer health support to supported housing placements for 

young people across both counties  

4. Collated emotional health packs and distributed them to young people and 

partner agencies across both counties 

5. Packs were also sent to colleagues in Pembrokeshire and Swansea upon 

request 

6. Liaised with our colleagues able to offer counselling services at this time for 

young people unable to access services through an education establishment. 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



7. Liaised with colleagues across all sectors regarding young people who are 

educated through alternative provision, electively home educated, those who 

receive support from school based social workers and education welfare 

service, those who are attend traineeship placements and individuals classed 

as NEET.  

8. Linked in with colleagues to address the emotional health and wellbeing 

needs of Young Carers 

9. Fulfilled any and all statutory duties through working closely with our 

colleagues in children services, youth support services and youth justice 

services. 

10. Pre-emptively held discussions across both counties with the relevant parties 

regarding how to manage the post lockdown transition for young people who 

are particularly vulnerable eg at risk of offending behaviour, substance misuse 

issues, sexual health matters, child sexual exploitation, county lines and misper 

risks. 

 

Children’s Public Health Pilot 

 In November 2020 funding was secured from Welsh Government via the 

Public Health Directorate for a pilot to extend the services provided by 

Children’s Public Health across the Hywel Dda University Health Board region. 

The decision was reached to setup a ChatHealth service for Children and 

young people aged 11-25. ChatHealth is an age appropriate digital platform 

for health information and local services, it is designed for users who are more 

comfortable asking for help via messaging.  

 

The pilot took place in February 2021.  Iechyd Da Youth Health Team and 

school health nurses have worked in collaboration to address the emotional 

health and wellbeing of school aged children in the region, both those who 

access mainstream school and those who do not.  In addition to this, both 

teams are passionate to contribute their time and energy to the reduction of 

health inequalities experienced by some children, young people and their 

families. 

 

Iechyd Da Youth Health team currently work all year round and it was decided that 

the pilot would be used to establish the need for School Nursing on a 52 week basis, 

and thereby contribute to the ongoing development of 2 dynamic and ever evolving 

services.  

2. Adnabod a darpariaeth | Identification and provision 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 Within HDUHB, we have  developed the School In Reach Service ( SIR)  which 

has the fundamental aim of supporting teachers to identify early those 

students who may be struggling with emotional or mental health concerns 

and ensure, through  early intervention, the right support is provided or 

signposting the right agency ie school counselling or SCAMHS is prioritsed . 

We have benefited from this new investment from Welsh Government with a 

workforce that is able to prioritse early intervention and prevention as a 

priority. Each school has a named link worker who is available to deal with 

requests for consultation , provide training and ensure a whole school 

approach is adopted. 

 The Sir team is able to prioritse emotional and mental health supporting 

teachers and this is a model that can be extended to colleges and universities 

if additional resources were available. 

 Communication with parents/ trusted adult and the need for clear lines of 

coummication  and support for vulnerable students where there is a risk that 

adult learning model may result in some young people not getting the 

support they need. 

 Training for lecturers  on mental health and understanding the indicators.  

 Within HDUHB, we have developed a Transition Lead Post based in S-CAMHS 

who is able to support the transition of young people from S-CAMHS to Adult 

Mental Health Services . The Transition Lead is working with adult colleagues 

to promote the development of more responsive services for young people 

who transition  to adult mental health services , ensure they do not “drop out” 

from services and we have a Transition Policy  agreed which ensures that at 

17.6 yrs transition plans are discussed and agreed where relevant . We have 

also promoted the Transition Passport advcocated by Welsh Governent with 

young people .We have also employed a Peer Mentor support worker who will 

support young people as they transition for 3 months to ensure they go to 

appointments and advocate for them.  

 Within our Early Intervention Psychosis Team ( EIP) we have commissioned 

MIND to support us with young adults  returning to work or education .This 

service is called the  Individual Placement Support  Servcie ( IPS) which is 

focused on ensuring that  young adults with mental health disorders are 

supported to obtain employment either full /part time or to resume their 

educational studies . The MIND support workers are able to support students 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



,meet with employers/ tutors and act as a advocate for the young person to 

assist them to achieve their full potential. 

 KOOTH – we have commissioned for 2 years an on-line digital counselling 

service for young people (11-18) to support emotional wellbeing , this digital 

resource appeals to CYP with the focus on digital accessibility and anonymity.  

 SilverCloud- we are currently working with  Powys  HB  on a pathway for 

referrals to the SilverCloud CBT programme, again a online provision which 

will address key mental health disorders. 

 The post pandemic landscape is further complicated by the current cost of 

living crisis.  Increasingly, we are seeing high numbers of emotional health 

referrals form a diverse group of service users.  

 With each different group comes different challenges; there are notable 

similarities in young people struggling with the impact of increased isolation 

and decreased socialisation due to the lockdowns and restrictions.  

 There has been a noticeable increase in referrals for young people who are 

electively home educated and for school refusers.  The team continues to 

support communities of interest already facing inequalities eg. People who 

are: care leavers/young people in care, gypsy and traveller, 

homeless/vulnerably housed, the lgbtq+ community, people who are living in 

poverty, have experience of domestic abuse, have experience of substance 

misuse, learning difficulties, sensory issues and young carers. 

 

 

3. Polisïau, deddfwriaeth a chyllid Llywodraeth Cymru | Welsh Government 

policy, legislation and funding 

We acknowledge the proposal for all funding being streamlined however there 

remains much work to be done in ensuring a whole system approach to address 

mental health and wellbeing across tertiary providers.  

The evidence for the School In Reach service could be considered as a approach to 

strengthen  emotional and mental health support across college/ university settings 

with dedicated resources . Support and training for educators/ lecturers  should also 

be considered to promote early intervention ,promote support and intervention  and 

also  to  prevent burn out when supporting students with emotional or mental health 

concens. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



4. Argymhellion ar gyfer newid | Recommendations for change 

 

1. To learn from the School In Reach evaluation and recommendations  

2. To give equal priority to young adults at a point in their life when transitioning to 

adult services and Education providers  

3. Consider the impact across Wales of rurality and lack of pubic transport in certain 

areas. 

 

11. Arall | Other  

 

Within HDUHB,  we have established an All Age Single Point of contact( SPOC) 

 

All Age Mental Health Single Point of Contact  

Mental Health & Learning Disabilites Services have been working with Welsh 

Government (WG) to implement an all-age Mental Health Single Point of Contact 

(SPOC) operating via the national 111 service.  

The structure of the service means that local care is provided by locality-based 

teams, which was highlighted as service need during the Transforming Mental Health 

(TMH) consultation. The aim of the MH SPOC is to improve service user and carer 

experience and reduce the number of people attending A&E in a mental health crisis 

by increasing the support available in the community. The Service provides triage of 

urgent mental health requests for help, ensuring that service users, carers and 

referrers receive an efficient and timely response when accessing mental health 

services or needing advice, support and signposting.   

It is an open access all age telephone triage service which is accessed via the national 

111 call line, by selecting Option 2. Hywel Dda are the first health Board in Wales to 

offer the service publicly since mid-June 2022. It currently operates from 09.00am – 

11.30 pm 7 days a week. The service is available to any individual of any age residing 

within the Health Board footprint of Ceredigion, Carmarthenshire and 

Pembrokeshire. This includes anyone visiting the area, including those who may be 

homeless or living in temporary accommodation.    

When a call comes through Option 2 the caller will be connected to a Mental Health 

Practitoner based in either Bryngofal, Llanelli or Whitybush Hospital in 

Haverfordwest. The Option 2 facility means that the caller will bypass the 111-call 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



service and be directly connected to our local teams. Using a recognised triage tool 

and compassionate focused interventions Practitioners will assess the mental health 

needs of the individual and as appropriate escalate. They will connect individuals to 

the most appropriate mental health and well-being provision to meet their needs in 

a timely manner, including those with common mental health problems and those 

with more complex, acute and high-risk presentations.   

Callers can self-refer or calls can come from family, friends, carers etc. A secondary 

Professional Line can be accessed by calling a local telephone number which has 

been shared with health board and partner professionals. This line provides mental 

health advice on assessment and triage to a wide range of professionals such as GP’s, 

Police, WAST, 111 service, Accident & Emergency (A&E) Local Authority, Third Sector 

and other health professionals.  

There will be a phased implementation of the service to 24 hours a day, 7 days a 

week, 365 days a year as remaining staff onboard. The expected date for 24/7 

operation is early November 2022.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



Royal College of Psychiatrists Wales 
Response to Mental Health Support in Higher Education Institutions 

For further information, please contact: 
Kate Lowther 
Policy Officer, RCPsych Wales 
Katherine.lowther@rcpsych.ac.uk  

The Royal College of Psychiatrists is the professional medical body 
responsible for supporting psychiatrists throughout their careers, 
from training through to retirement, and setting and raising 
standards of psychiatry in the United Kingdom. 

The College aims to improve the outcomes of people with mental 
illness and intellectual disabilities, and the mental health of 
individuals, their families and communities. 

In order to achieve this, the College sets standards and promotes 
excellence in psychiatry; leads, represents and supports psychiatrists; 
improves the scientific understanding of mental illness; works with 
and advocates for patients, carers and their organisations. Nationally 
and internationally, the College has a vital role in representing the 
expertise of the psychiatric profession to governments and other 
agencies. 

RCPsych Wales represents more than 600 Consultant and Trainee 
Psychiatrists working in Wales. 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 4

Tudalen y pecyn 38

Eitem 3

mailto:Katherine.lowther@rcpsych.ac.uk


 

 

 
1. Student service managers, counsellors and Mental Health Advisors (MHAs) 

report increasing numbers of clients and an increase in the severity of the 
problems that trouble them. Some of this increased demand is a result of 
the unprecedented expansion in the number of young adults entering 
higher education.  

 
2. About 3.7% of students declare a mental health condition when they apply 

to university representing a 450% increase between 2011 and 2021.1 This 
figure represents about half of those who have a mental health issue. Once 
at University, first-year students have to adapt to new environments and 
ways of learning. Academic demands and workload increase, and university 
courses require much more self-directed learning and the capacity to 
manage time and prioritise work. These can be disrupted by mental 
disorder, neurodevelopmental issues, and misuse of drugs and alcohol. As a 
result, students can face academic decline that can result in the need to 
repeat academic years or even to withdraw from university or college. 

 
3. For those who need specialist services, there can be several barriers on the 

pathways to care: 

• Some students, particularly international students and men, may be 
sensitive to the fear of stigmatization 

• There may be long waiting lists for services such as clinical psychology 
and psychotherapy  

• Achieving access and maintaining continuity of care can be difficult 
when students are in one place during term time and return home or go 
elsewhere during holiday periods. 

 
4. The student group is one whose education and experience have often 

fostered capacities for reflection and introspection. They are more likely to 
seek some form of counselling or psychotherapy and have a greater chance 
of benefiting from it. They are generally less enthusiastic about psychotropic 
medication and less tolerant of medication side-effects such as drowsiness, 
poor concentration and sexual dysfunction.2 It is important that service 
provision is designed with these factors in mind to maximise the 
acceptability and effectiveness of treatment.  

 
5. The student population is becoming increasingly diverse and some of this 

diversity is creating new pressures on counselling and mental health 
services. At the same time, there have been changes in universities and 
other higher education institutions (HEIs) which have made them less able 
to cope with mental disorders in students, for example staff: student ratios 
have declined through failure to increase staff numbers in proportion to the 

 
1 md-7067-mental-health-report-2021-v4 (1).pdf 
2 mental-health-of-higher-education-students-(cr231).pdf (rcpsych.ac.uk) 

Tudalen y pecyn 39

file:///C:/Users/Katherine.Lowther/Downloads/md-7067-mental-health-report-2021-v4%20(1).pdf
https://www.rcpsych.ac.uk/docs/default-source/improving-care/better-mh-policy/college-reports/mental-health-of-higher-education-students-(cr231).pdf


 

 

increase in numbers of students. Academic staff are under constant 
pressure to maintain and improve research output as well as to develop 
their teaching, and this can mean that less time is available for pastoral care. 
It seems likely that pressure on public finances will exacerbate these 
problems in the next few years.  

 
 
Vulnerable groups.  
 

6. Some groups of students in higher education are disproportionately 
affected by poor mental health or face different challenges when 
attempting to access support. Young women, international students and 
people from the LGBTQ+ community are three of these groups, and their 
particular challenges are highlighted below.  

 
Young Women 

7. Since 1993 the NHS in England has been carrying out surveys every seven 
years of mental ill health in the population. The most recent was carried out 
in 2014 and was reported in 2016. Since 1993 there has been a steady increase 
in the prevalence of ‘common mental disorders’ in women. The levels in men 
have risen to a much smaller degree. In 2014, the one-week prevalence of 
such disorders was 20.7% in women and 13.2% in men.  

 
8. The gender gap has become more pronounced since 1993, and especially in 

young people, to the point that the report designates young women as a 
high-risk group. In the 16-24 age group 26% of women compared to 9% of 
men reported a common mental disorder in the week preceding the survey. 
One in four young women reported that they had harmed themselves at 
some point in their lives. In 2000, the figure was much lower at 6%.  

 
9. In common with findings in the general population, female students report 

increased rates of mental health symptoms. The impacts of childhood 
sexual abuse, sexual victimisation, and abuse perpetrated by intimate 
partners may contribute to this. There is a need for health promotion efforts 
to focus on both would-be perpetrators and potential victims to tackle this 
problem. 

 
International Students 

10. It's important to be aware of the struggles an international student may 
have as they adjust to living and studying in the UK, with the possible impact 
on their mental health. This can be challenging for practitioners working 
with students, with limited time to provide an effective and sensitive 
response.  

 
11. Seeking help from a mental health professional may present additional 

barriers, particularly if the student is from a society where mental health 
difficulties carry a particularly strong stigma.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

 

12. Institutions and health providers share a desire to support their student 
populations and help them to succeed, whatever their social or cultural 
background. It is incumbent on HEIs and health providers to work together 
to make the support available comprehensible, transparent and accessible 
for all students, including international students, with sensitivity to their 
varying needs.  

 
LGBTQ+ 

13. UCAS data shows that Transgender applicants are 6.1 times more likely to 
share a mental health condition in their university application, while bisexual 
applicants are 6.0 times more likely to declare, and gay women/lesbians are 
5.7 times more likely.3 Research shows that people from the LGBT+ 
community experience high levels of poor mental health and wellbeing and 
report suicidal thoughts and actions.4 

 
 
COVID-19 

14. The COVID epidemic has thrown up a new raft of issues that will have to be 
considered in the context of student mental health. These will apply to all 
students but will weigh more heavily on those with histories of mental ill 
health. Such students may already find it difficult to integrate with a new 
social environment and to build relationships with clinicians, support staff, 
academic staff and their fellow students. These difficulties will be 
exacerbated by the restrictions arising from COVID. Problems may arise in 
the following areas: 

• Increased general anxiety and/or depression amongst the student 
population arising from: anxiety about getting COVID; the effects of the 
COVID crisis on their course and their assessments; anxiety about 
finances because of fewer opportunities for paid work; anxiety about 
future career prospects; anxiety about family back home being at risk of, 
or ill with, COVID; anxieties about living in shared accommodation. 

• Social isolation of students because of increased use of remote learning 
• Impacts of social distancing on engagement with student clubs, 

societies, and social events 
• Possible changes in use of alcohol from social to solitary drinking 
• A larger proportion of NHS and student support services being provided 

virtually rather than face-to-face, with a likely reduction in effectiveness 
and engagement, possibly leading to under-recognition of problems and 
failure to provide treatment, therapy or support 

• Effects of COVID on GP registration of students, it being even more 
important for Higher Education Institutions to ensure that students are 
registered, allowing a prompt response to students who develop 
symptoms of COVID or who test positive 

• The international student cohort likely being reduced in the next year or 
two but likely to need enhanced support (both from HEIs and NHS) 

 
3 md-7067-mental-health-report-2021-v4 (1).pdf 
4 LGBTI-Populations-and-Mental-Health-Inequality-May-2018.pdf (lgbthealth.org.uk) 

Tudalen y pecyn 41

file:///C:/Users/Katherine.Lowther/Downloads/md-7067-mental-health-report-2021-v4%20(1).pdf
http://www.lgbthealth.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/LGBTI-Populations-and-Mental-Health-Inequality-May-2018.pdf


 

 

• An increased need to promote physical activity in students, possibly 
preventing the development of COVID and ameliorating symptoms in 
those who do contract the illness 

• The majority of first year students having been offered places on the basis 
of predicted, rather than actual, exam results; some students with 
predicted results below their potential and others whose prediction has 
inflated their grades; some students being angry and disappointed at 
not getting on to the course of their choice and other struggling with the 
academic demands of their courses. 

 
NHS and HEI collaborative working  
 

15. The Welsh University’s, and NUS Wales, have all launched their health and 
wellbeing strategies over recent years. Universities are working in 
partnership with staff, students and the wider community to ensure that 
supporting positive mental health and wellbeing is an integral part of 
university life. Student mental health is an increasing priority as the 
evidence shows that students are at higher risk of developing many mental 
health problems than the general population, and many individuals first 
experience issues whilst at university. 

 
16. Higher education institutions have long provided counselling and disability 

support for their students. A newer professional group that has grown in 
numbers since the 2003 report is Mental Health Advisors (MHAs) and, more 
recently, Mental Health Mentors. These individuals and, increasingly, teams 
are expected to adhere to standards of professionalism which ensure safe 
and effective practices within HEIs, and to undertake a range of roles. They 
assess how mental health difficulties affect learning, assess needs, and assist 
students in developing context-specific, individualised, self-management 
strategies. They recommend appropriate adjustments within the higher 
education setting to enable learning, and liaise with external agencies to 
support students in accessing appropriate treatment and support. Many 
have professional NHS backgrounds and are thus well placed to coordinate 
activity at the interface between HEIs and the NHS. MHAs are often also 
given responsibility for mental health promotion. They advise on mental 
health policy and disability rights for students with serious and enduring 
mental health difficulties.  

 
17. The Student Health Association (SHA) is an association of general 

practitioners and primary care nurses who provide services to students, 
either exclusively or as part of a larger practice population. There is an 
involvement and experience in the management of student mental health 
which is considerably greater than that provided in routine GP settings. They 
are more cognisant the effects of mental disorder on academic progress and 
the impact of academic pressures on student mental health. In such cases, 
GPs often liaise directly with student counselling services, disability services, 
MHAs, academic staff and university support services, NHS specialist 
services and voluntary services.  

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 

 

 
18. The Mental Health University Liaison Service is also available for students 

living in Cardiff. This is a service which supports students who experience 
sub-crisis mental health difficulties, or those who have long-standing 
complex needs. This will address a gap which has been identified between 
the mandate for Student Support Services at university and the threshold 
for NHS Secondary Care Mental Health Services, where students require an 
NHS referral or assessment.5  

 
Early identification of individuals who need targeted support 

19. General practitioners (GPs) and their teams make vital contributions to the 
prevention of mental illness, early detection, and longer-term management.  

 
20. Liaison with NHS services is an important part of the MHA role. Many 

students find accessing mental health services challenging, particularly if it 
is the first time they have required a formal mental health assessment. A 
MHA may be able to offer consultative support to staff to facilitate an early 
intervention response to emerging concerns. The adviser can act as a bridge 
between higher education, the NHS, and other providers outside the higher 
education sector, often playing a key role in coordinating a network of 
support services and acting as a central focus for external agencies wishing 
to share information or consider support plans for students. When 
appropriate, they will be active in sharing issues of concern with GPs and 
statutory services involved in a student’s treatment, particularly when 
supporting the student in accessing services.  

 
21. In many institutions MHAs and counsellors have developed good links with 

early intervention and crisis assessment and treatment teams, and direct 
referrals to these have proved very beneficial to students.  

 
Issues with NHS service access 

22. The fact that students often divide their time between home, university and 
other locations creates difficulties in providing continuity of care for those 
with long term mental health conditions. An additional factor is that the 
transition to university-based services may require transition from Child and 
Adolescent to Adult Mental Health Services. When students manage to 
access treatment, there can often be big gaps when they return home or 
are travelling during vacations while still receiving care.  

 
23. The student going to university should be advised to contact and meet the 

Mental Health or Disability Advisor at their intended place of study to discuss 
ay support that may be required and to consider applying for Disabled 
Students’ Allowance.  

 
24. It is important that all possible efforts are made to ensure that students 

register with a general practice as soon as possible after arrival at university. 
The fact that a patient cannot be registered with more than one practice at 

 
5 Supporting students’ mental health - News - Cardiff University 

Tudalen y pecyn 43

https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/news/view/2625284-supporting-students-mental-health


 

 

a time can lead to discontinuities as the student moves from home to 
university and back again. There may, for example, be delays in the transfer 
of medical records and in the timely prescription of medication.  

 
25. The NHS should consider how better to manage the issue of registration in 

students who divide their time between home and university. This should 
be done in a way that does not lead to financial detriment in university-
based general practices. One option might be the creation of a common 
electronic and/or patient-held medical record.  

 
26. The efforts of NHS services and those provided by HEIs can be better 

coordinated. Although they tend to focus on different parts of the spectrum 
of psychiatric disorder, there is a large overlap between the activities of these 
services and considerable scope for improvement in collaborative working. 
There is a need to consider developing appropriate protocols for the sharing 
of confidential and sensitive information.  

 
27. The Mental Health University Liaison Service (MHULS) is a new NHS mental 

health service in Wales, being piloted for all students living in Cardiff and 
studying in one of the city’s universities. The service provides support for 
students from Cardiff University, Cardiff Metropolitan University, University 
of South Wales and The Royal Welsh College of Music and Drama who 
experience sub-crisis mental health difficulties, or those who have long-
standing complex needs. 

 

28. The pilot has been developed by the South East Wales Mental Health 
Partnership and will address the identified gap between the mandate for 
Student Support Services at each university and the threshold for NHS 
Secondary Care Mental Health Services, where students require an NHS 
referral or assessment. Students can access this service – which is based on 
their university campus - through referral from their University Student 
Services team, Adult Liaison Psychiatry, or their GP. NHS mental health 
nurses are based on campus to provide students with a means to be 
assessed, referred and guided through NHS mental health services. Their 
universities are also involved in ongoing support plans. Such coordinated 
initiatives will be fundamental to improving collaborative working between 
universities and the NHS and facilitating access to mental health provision 
for students. 

 
The wider post-16 education sector promotion of good mental health 

 
29. Universities in Wales, as across the rest of the UK, are increasingly adopting 

a whole university approach to mental health and wellbeing and recognise 
mental health as a strategic priority. All aspects of university life promote 
and support staff and student mental health. 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

 

 
30. This whole university approach requires that all aspects of university life 

promote and support staff and student mental health and recognises the 
effect of culture and environment, and inequalities, on mental health and 
wellbeing. For some time now, the higher education sector in Wales has 
been working to transform universities into healthy settings. This approach 
recognises that all university staff and students have a role to play and that 
universities must also continue to develop partnerships with healthcare 
providers and other external organisations to further develop coordinated 
approaches to improving access to mental health care. 

 
31. Universities are working to embed health and wellbeing in both course 

design and curricula development and delivery. Programmes have been 
developed in Wales to support student health and wellbeing, for example, 
mental health literacy courses, which may either be embedded within core 
curricula or provided as additional courses that students can choose to 
undertake. Universities and Student Unions in Wales have developed 
learning communities, peer mentoring programmes, reflective practice 
groups as well as more targeted mental health interventions. The evidence 
base for some of these interventions is growing however funding is required 
to enable research to provide evidence in relation to specific programmes 
and interventions and their impact on student health and wellbeing, both 
in the short and long-term. Co-creation with students should be a core 
requirement for research in this area.  

 
32. Transition to university is now well recognised as a risk period in relation to 

mental health and wellbeing, both transition to university and the various 
transitions through which students progress throughout their university 
journey. Programmes to support specific groups of students in their 
transition to university life in Wales are being introduced, for example those 
supporting widening participation students, students with autistic 
spectrum or mental health conditions. Again evaluation of such initiatives is 
essential in further developing the evidence base around student health 
and wellbeing. 

 
 

  
Welsh Government policy, legislation and funding 
 

33. Welsh Government would be able to better support students’ mental health 
by introducing stricter controls on energy prices and the cost of living. 
Balancing study and work, many students already struggle to make ends 
meet without the added pressure of rising energy costs. To combat this, 
Welsh Government could also work with universities to ensure that warm 
spaces are provided on campus for students. 

 
34. Additionally, debt is a cause for concern when considering the mental 

health of students in higher education. Students must anticipate going into 
a highly competitive work environment. They will often enter working life 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 

 

saddled with large debts incurred from student loans, which takes its toll on 
the mental health of students.  

 
35. Funding for research to develop an evidence base around student health 

and wellbeing would be a useful step that the Government could take, as 
well as continuing to fund the MHULS. 

 
 
Tertiary Education and Research: 
 

36. In the context of the Tertiary Education and Research (Wales) bill, when 
looking ahead to what a whole-system approach to mental health and well-
being in post-16 education may look like, it’s essential that there is continuity 
across all providers of mental health care, namely universities and health 
boards.   

 
37. The new Commission for Tertiary Education and Research could have a role 

in: 

a) Overseeing student wellbeing and support services  
b) Looking at ways schools, HEIs and universities could join up information flow 

about student needs (ensuring confidentiality and provision of opt outs) 
c) Looking for shared protocols between universities, the third sector, 

accommodation providers, university health services, GPs and secondary 
care.   

 
Recommendations for change  
 

1. Consider approaches to information sharing between schools and 
universities around mental health needs of students whilst respecting 
privacy and choice. 

2. Consider having someone who can be nominated as a point of contact in 
the event of a student mental health crisis. 

3. Enhance university provision and encourage joint working between 
wellbeing services, student health services and external agencies including 
third sector and NHS. 

4. Develop shared agreements between FE, Universities, accommodation 
providers, the third sector and the NHS on a geographical basis. 

5. All HEIs should have a working group that oversees the implementation of 
good practice in relation to student mental health. 

6. Services should be integrated – students who are mentally troubled may 
come into contact both with NHS mental health services and those provided 
by universities, such as counselling. Outcomes will be better if these inputs 
are integrated and coordinated.  

7. Resource allocation – it’s important to ensure that services based in both 
HEIs and NHS are given sufficient resources to meet demand. 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

 

8. Improve communication with families – anyone who is involved in helping 
mentally troubled students should, wherever appropriate, seek the consent 
of the student to engage their family in the processes of assessment and 
treatment. 

9. Research – the development of existing and new services in students will 
only be effective if it is informed by up-to-date research.  

10. COVID – The NHS and HEIs should be alert to the impacts of the COVID 
pandemic and do whatever is possible to minimise their effects and find 
alternative ways of meeting the needs of students.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 

 

 

 

 

 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Senedd Cymru Children, Young People and Education Committee’s into Mental Health 
support in Higher Education: RCGP Cymru Wales Response 

 
 

The Children, Young People and Education Committee has requested written evidence 
regarding mental heath support in higher education. The Committee has asked for comment 
regarding the extent of need, how universities can identify need and provide mental health 
solutions and how policy can assist in this provision.  
 
Extent of need 

 

RCGP Cymru Wales members are accustomed to dealing with mental health issues that present 

in patients from the local community. The nature of higher education means that it presents 

unique challenges. Mental health charity, Mind, illustrates that there are several potential 

sources of poor mental health for students in higher education: 

 

 meeting and working with new people 
 the pressure of exams, deadlines for written work or presentations 
 managing their own finances for the first time 
 homesickness 
 balancing the demands of studying with other commitments, such as caring 

responsibilities or work 
 maintaining relationships with family and old friends 
 leaving home, finding new housing, and living with new people. 1 

 
A news article, published in June 2022, stated that 94% of universities reported an increased 
demand for counselling following COVID-19 as the above factors were exacerbated by the 
isolation, uncertainty and health anxiety that has come with the pandemic.2 
 
Identification and Provision  
 

                                            
1 Mind, Student Life: https://www.mind.org.uk/information-support/tips-for-everyday-living/student-life/about-

student-mental-health/ 

 
2 https://www.walesonline.co.uk/news/education/nhs-mental-health-nurses-based-24284862 

Tudalen y pecyn 48

https://senedd.wales/committee/736


These challenges are potential sources of stress which mean cause poor mental health. 

However, the circumstances above can also create barriers for accessing support or treatment 

for mental health. Students are often many miles away from family members, established 

friendship groups and will not yet have a relationship with the GP in their new location.  

 

Universities encourage students to register with the GP on site, however this can present a 

problem as many students spend the extensive breaks in the academic year in their 'home 

town’, meaning that continuity of care is not possible. It is not practical to register with the 

closest GP each term and holiday period, meaning that students will spend some of their time 

without access to a health care professional, other than out of hours services.  

 

It is not just the practicality of students moving between locations which cause issues for the 

provision of mental health care. If a student wishes to see their GP regarding a mental health 

issue there will usually be a substantial waiting time, after which time the student have moved 

locations again.  

 

Due to this practical problem, universities provide onsite counselling services and wellbeing 

provision3 , however there have been anecdotal complaints of these services in Wales4 and 

research into the effectiveness of these services is in its infancy.  

 

An article in the British Journal of Guidance and Counselling found great differences between 

the amount of treatment sessions and their frequency, however the study reported that 

students broadly found the service effective.5 However the article acknowledged that the data 

was somewhat unreliable.6 The study, which considered over 5,500 students from UK 

universities only involved one Welsh university, and therefore much research is needed to test 

the efficacy of the counselling services available in Welsh Universities.7 

 

There is also some evidence to suggest that even if students could practically access support 

from a GP that they would not choose to, as there is a perception that they will be dismissed as 

being 'too sensitive' or will be given medication as a 'quick fix' without any further support.8  

Indeed this may be the course of action taken by university GPs, due the practical issues with 

referrals for students, described above.  

 

                                            
3 Cardiff University, Health and Wellbeing: https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/study/student-life/student-
support/counselling-and-wellbeing 
4 The Courier, February 2021: https://www.thecourieronline.co.uk/6-page-complaint-to-cardiff-university-for-lack-
of-student-support/ 
5 Broglia E et al, British Journal of Guidance and Counselling, 2020: 
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/03069885.2020.1860191 
6 Broglia E et al, British Journal of Guidance and Counselling, 2020: 
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/03069885.2020.1860191 
7 Broglia E et al, British Journal of Guidance and Counselling, 2020: 
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/03069885.2020.1860191 
8 Mind, Stories: https://www.mind.org.uk/information-support/your-stories/learning-to-cope-with-anxiety-and-

panic-attacks-at-university/ 

 
Tudalen y pecyn 49



  

However, the pandemic may have brought a potential solution. As was reported in June 2022, 

Cardiff University has introduced NHS mental health nurses following the pandemic to cope the 

increased demand for services. These nurses from the NHS have been funded by the Mental 

Health University Liaison Service and the pilot is expected to run until December 2022. Cardiff 

university described the initiative as bridging the gap between NHS mental health services and 

what can be practically accessed by University Students given their unique circumstances, 

however RCGP Cymru Wales feels that this 'gap' should be bridged on a permanent basis not 

simply for one university term.  

 

Policy and recommendations 

 

As in RCGP's 2021 report, Fit the Future: Relationship Based Care, it is clear that a strong 

relationship between a patient and their GP practice is conducive to improved outcomes 

including for mental health.9 Patients who know and trust their GP are more likely to seek help 

sooner and to disclose more information about their symptoms.10 This enables the GP to work 

with the patient to find an appropriate solution. As above, students who feel that they will not 

be listened to must not have a foundation of trust with their GP. This is understandable given 

the practicalities of moving from one place to another which is a common part of student life. 

Therefore, Welsh Government, Universities and Health Boards must provide for that 

relationship to be created.  

 

This is especially the case for more serious instances of mental illness such as those resulting in 

self harm.  Mughal et al, writing in the British Journal of General Practice note that GPs can be 

integral in noticing where instances of self-harm occur due to the existing relationship with the 

patient and the resultant ability to identify changes in demeanour, the same is true of general 

mental health. 11 

 

Professor Ed Watkins, Professor of Experimental and Applied Clinical Psychology at the 

University of Exeter, writing for the National Institute of Care and Research, advocates for a 

'whole university' approach. 12 He states that this would involve ' all aspects of the university 

including culture, curriculum, assessment, and formal services to contribute to improved 

wellbeing. [This model would involve] universities [being] responsible for promoting good 

mental health and flourishing in students.'  

 

This would remove the onus for safeguarding of the students away from health services and 

towards the university itself. It would address the fact that students often miss the community 

of home however, as above, university lead services often miss the high standard of care that 

patients are used to receiving from their family doctor.  

 

                                            
9 RCGP Fit for the Future: Relationship Based Care 2021: https://www.rcgp.org.uk/getmedia/69a69459-59e2-4cfa-
9fa5-3331895eeea0/fit-future-relationship-based-care-june-2022.pdf 
10 RCGP Fit for the Future: Relationship Based Care 2021: https://www.rcgp.org.uk/getmedia/69a69459-59e2-4cfa-
9fa5-3331895eeea0/fit-future-relationship-based-care-june-2022.pdf 
11 Mughal et al, British Journal of General Practice, 2019 ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6428479/ 
12 National Institute for Health and Care Research: https://www.nihr.ac.uk/blog/universities-need-to-support-the-
mental-health-and-wellbeing-of-students/2916 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



RCGP Cymru Wales feels that the solution, would be something akin to the pilot currently 

underway at Cardiff University, whereby NHS professional work closely with the University to 

provide quality care, strong relationships and a sense of community.  

 

This approach echoes that of Duffy et al, writing in the Lancet in 2019. 13 They suggest that a 

multidisciplinary NHS team working in tandem with academic advisors and university staff 

would provide a solution that brings students and community NHS services together.14 

 

Duffy suggests that access to self-help resources is the first point of call and these should be 

supplied by the University.  If the student then requires additional support, they can be triaged 

by an onsite specialist team who can refer to local community services. 15 

 

This is a potential solution however work is still needed to allow for a student to be able to 

access support wherever they may be located at various points during the academic year. Also, 

more work needs to be done in the safeguarding of vulnerable students to encourage them to 

access support before they reach crisis point.  

 

 

                                            
13 Duffy et al, The Lancet, 2019: https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpsy/article/PIIS2215-0366(19)30275-
5/fulltext 
14 Duffy et al, The Lancet, 2019: https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpsy/article/PIIS2215-0366(19)30275-
5/fulltext 
15 Duffy et al, The Lancet, 2019: https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpsy/article/PIIS2215-0366(19)30275-
5/fulltext 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



1 
 

 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 6 

Mind Cymru Initial Response 

October 2022  

“During my time at university I attempted to access support but was put on multiple waiting lists or 

offered one session. I think due to difficulties in accessing support many students feel like there’s no 

point seeking help as not much will change.” 

“Same as with university services, the waiting lists are very long and not enough counsellors. 

Considering that adult services are for those over 18s, those NHS waiting lists are far lengthier than 

university ones since it is not just students trying to get help.” 

We welcome the Children, Young People and Education Committee’s inquiry into mental health 

support in higher education as one of the growing issues areas for the sector. We know the sector 

are making every effort to support as many students as they can and work with the relevant NHS 

services. 

Higher education institutions need to address a particular set of issues in order to meet the needs 

for their students, including:  

 Enabling supportive staff and courses  

 Creating an open culture and tackling mental health stigma, both within the staff base and 
the student body 

 Clear signposting to what support is available 

 Robust referrals to services in and between the university and the NHS, to ensure no student 
“falls through the gap” 

 Students facing the transition from CAMHS to AMHS receiving adequate help  

 A person-centred, needs-based approach to mental health and wellbeing 
 

We are aware that demand has been increasing for support with the number of UK applicants 

through UCAS declaring a mental health condition having risen by 450% in the last 10 years to 3.7% 

of all applicants1. Due to the nature of much of the data in the higher education sector being held 

privately by universities, there is little to be gleaned beyond service user testimony, such as those 

quoted above. For demand to be appropriately assessed a joined-up approach to data sharing is 

needed from the sector. UCAS regularly produce helpful admissions data, and perhaps a top-down 

approach in this model would greatly assist strategy development in this area.  

Whilst anyone can experience poor mental health, we know that our mental health is affected by a 

range of different determinants, much like our physical health. Inequalities can impact on access to 

appropriate mental health support, and this must be recognised in the context of this inquiry. The 

pandemic highlighted how these inequalities fundamentally impact on the risk of experiencing poor 

mental health. There is a need for higher education institutions to consider in particular how support 

is provided to students who experience poverty, from Black and other ethnic minority communities 

                                                           
1 https://www.ucas.com/corporate/news-and-key-documents/news/450-increase-student-mental-health-
declarations-over-last-decade-progress-still-needed-address 

Tudalen y pecyn 52

Eitem 4



2 
 

(including international students), those with caring responsibilities and some course specific 

support for those undertaking certain degrees, such as medical students. 

“I would love to see short training courses on mental health first aid to give students the 

confidence to open up and help others if needed. There is not much information and advice on 

supporting others, and many people do not have the confidence to approach a friend or start a 

conversation about mental health because they might not know what to say.”  

 

In the 2019/20 academic year, Mind worked with a series of universities in England as part of our 

Mentally Healthy Universities programme with outcomes of: 

 

 Ensuring students were equipped to manage their mental health and thrive at university.   

 Ensuring students had the knowledge and tools to manage their mental health and 
wellbeing.  

 Ensuring students were prepared to manage their mental health in future employment.  

 Reducing stigma and improving peer support for university staff.  

 Making positive changes to the way universities think and act about mental health 
 

To achieve this the programme we developed delivered six workshops/interventions: 

 

 Wellbeing Essentials sessions for students.  

 Tools and Techniques for Mental Health: a four week resilience-building intervention for 
students.  

 Looking After Your Mental Health at Work sessions for students.  

 A training course and ongoing support for new Staff Mental Health Champions: volunteers 
whose role is to reduce stigma and raise awareness of mental health.  

 A training course and ongoing support for new Staff Mental Health Peer Supporters, whose 
volunteer role is to provide peer support to their colleagues in their workplace. 

 Worked with universities to meet the Mental Health at Work commitment  
 

Just under three-fifths of students (58%) and 73% of staff had personal experience of mental health 

problems. A third of students (33%) and over half of staff (53%) used or had previously used mental 

health services. The majority of students who engaged with the programme evaluation were UK/EU 

students (86%) who were female (73%), white (88%), aged 16-24 (77%). 

The programme identified a range of recommendations both for Mind as a provider but also for 

government and higher education institutions themselves: 

 Ensure mental health and wellbeing in the education system is prioritised and sufficient 
funding is allocated for support services, training and resources. This includes staff as well as 
students.  

 Prioritise supporting staff with their mental health – Universities should sign the Mental 
Health at Work Commitment and embed the six standards within their institution and invest 
in research on the causes of poor mental health for university staff, including those from 
diverse backgrounds to inform future work. 

 Invest in providing training and tools for students – Mental health training, information and 
support should be provided throughout students’ university experience, not just at the start.  

 Implement Peer Supporter and Mental Health Champion roles – Support should be provided 
by higher education institutions to staff to carry out these roles.  

Tudalen y pecyn 53



3 
 

 Senior leadership prioritise mental health and support future initiatives – Higher education 
settings should encourage senior management to prioritise the mental health of their staff 
and students.  

 Take a whole university approach – Apply for Student Minds’ University Mental Health 
Charter and take forward Universities UK’s Stepchange: mentally healthy universities.  

 Review and address the systematic causes of mental health problems for students and staff 
– Higher education institutions should review and address the causes of mental health 
problems within their specific demographic of students and staff. 

 Invest in research on best practise approaches to support the mental health needs of 
students from a range of backgrounds. This should include international students, students 
from racialised communities, LGBTQ+ students, disabled students and those with caring 
responsibilities.  
 

“I personally experienced so many difficulties accessing services and my antidepressant medication 
and I was not allowed to be registered at two GPs at once. I found whenever I went home I had to get 
my parents to post my medication which was expensive and I often missed many doses.” 

 

The relationship between university based mental health support and that available in the wider 

community is critical in providing students with consistent support. If a student has a more severe 

and enduring mental health problem it is likely that their support would be placed within the Local 

Health Board delivery rather than within the university. Creating a seamless support between these 

services is key to the overall student mental health experience. 

As the quote from one of the young people we spoke to testifies to, confusion between home 
services and those near university can lead to issues with things such as medication, which can have 
enormous wellbeing implications. Joined-up thinking and clear pathways, as well as easy-to-
understand guidance can make all the difference.  
 
Another recent graduate we spoke to recalled sign-up forms for a transfer to a GP surgery near their 
halls of residence being handed out in induction week, but with little follow up and not much 
understanding from the staff distributing the documents as to how the healthcare system would 
work as a student.   
 
It is not just an issue of getting a consultation, it is the quality and nature of the consultation itself 
that is often the issue. For some, going to see their GP could be a daunting experience. Mental 
health discussions can be a nerve-wracking, vulnerable experience for many. Where possible, 
students need to be given clear guidance as to what this step could involve, if it is the right one for 
them, and what they can expect from the university support services in tandem. There needs to be a 
no wrong door approach, with different professions communicating effectively.  
 

“At university age, the transition to AMHS from CAMHS will be ongoing for anybody. Perhaps the 
additional transition of starting university would put added pressure here. The main issue I can think 
of is keeping in touch with their therapist if they already have someone and they are moving to a 
university away from home, they may not offer remote treatment. Also in regard to moving their GP 
maybe this would cause an issue if someone wants to stick with their therapist, but they're based in a 
different health board and so would have to stop seeing them. Breaking away from their home, 
family, friends, schoolteachers and then ALSO their therapist, could be incredibly difficult.” 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



4 
 

We feel it is important to highlight the specific experiences of young people arriving at university 

having moved from CAMHS to adult services. Mind’s Sort the Switch report, published in May 2022, 

spoke to young people who had experienced the move to adult services and found that: 

 Their needs, thoughts and feelings about moving to adult services are often unheard 

 Many feel abandoned at 18 with inappropriate or no support 

 Trying to move between services can make mental health problems worse 

 Welsh Government guidance is not being fully and consistently implemented, leaving young 

people without support  

 

Many young people will be entering university at the age of 18, and some are likely to have 

experienced this transition. They may be feeling vulnerable and isolated from their familiar mental 

health support services, which is why it is so vital that, where suitable and possible, university 

services can communicate effectively with the NHS.  

Even if young students enter adult services as their primary means of mental health support, clear 

information with universities along this journey can make all the difference. The warmer the 

relationship students can have with university support services from the first moment of their 

studies, the more likely they are to feel settled during their studies, and hopefully achieve their 

potential.  

A rarely discussed issue for students is the transition from student support services to something 

suitable afterwards, whether with the NHS or otherwise. Some universities are known to offer 

recent graduates careers a limited few advice appointments after finishing their studies to help them 

into their futures, but a similar provision does not exist for mental health support.  

There are several clear mitigating reasons for this, such as the demand for services already being 

high. However, there is need to ensure that there is ongoing support for a young person who may be 

moving away from the support mechanisms they have developed both in terms of services as well as 

socially. An end of studies may be a suitable time for some to cease their current mental health 

support, but for others it can trigger a series of issues, as graduation can be a daunting experience.  

Solutions to this will require creativity and innovation, but it is a pressing issue that must not be 

overlooked if the higher education sector (and this inquiry) would like to evaluate the student 

mental health journey in full. Ideas may include:  

 Improving integration with the NHS, not just for specialist care. Strong links with GPs 

(particularly if the student is staying in their study city) would be enormously beneficial to 

stop graduates feeling like they have “fallen through the gap”.  

 One or two post-graduation appointments, whether with the counselling service itself or 

with a mental health adviser assessing options could offer good signposting and ensure 

momentum feels like it is not lost  

 Wider ideas could include things schemes such as social prescribing or something in the 

model of Mind’s Active Monitoring service. These could offer interim support or help move 

some of the care more into the community  

 

At the heart of both of these transitional issues is the necessity for students to be listened to. At 

these sensitive times in their lives, they must feel that their needs are being taken seriously. This 

needs to be recognised at a Welsh Government and an institutional level with urgency.  

Mind Cymru will be submitting more substantial written evidence to the Committee in due course. 

Tudalen y pecyn 55

https://www.mind.org.uk/media/12838/scamhs-to-amhs_final-may2022.pdf


Cyflwynwyd yr ymateb hwn i ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
i  gymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch 

This response was submitted to the Children, Young People and Education 
Committee inquiry into Mental Health support in Higher Education 

MHHE 08 

Ymateb gan: Student Minds 

Response from: Student Minds 

Nodwch eich barn mewn perthynas â chylch gorchwyl yr ymchwiliad. | Record 
your views against the inquiry’s terms of reference. 

1. Maint yr angen | Extent of need

As the UK’s student mental health charity, Student Minds endeavours to ensure that 
we utilise the latest academic literature, the insights of colleagues across the sector 
and by engaging students to hear about their experiences. 

Our own research from over the last 18 months has given us a reliable overview of 
the current extent of need. We have consistently seen around 1 in 4 students 
reporting having a diagnosed mental health issue and a further 1 in 4 self-reporting 
an undiagnosed mental health issue. Research from UCAS has shown that applicants 
disclosing having a mental health condition has increased by 453% over the last 10 
years. Mental health challenges are seemingly common amongst the student 
population. 

It is positive that students are becoming increasingly comfortable and confident in 
disclosing their mental health condition, talking about their challenges and seeking 
help. The need to tackle stigma around mental health is fortunately less needed. But 
this does in part contribute to increasing demand for support services. 

In addition, as we’re seeing a general increase in the number of students 
experiencing mental health challenges we’re also seemingly seeing an increase in the 
complexity of support needs. Key issues that students report as contributing to their 
mental health are around financial hardship; academic pressure; loneliness and 
isolation; discrimination, harrassment and bullying. We also see notable disparity 
with some student groups when it comes to the challenges they face with their 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 7

Tudalen y pecyn 56

https://senedd.cymru/pwyllgorau/y-pwyllgor-plant-pobl-ifanc-ac-addysg/
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://senedd.wales/committee/736
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=39662


mental health - particularly:  LGBTQ+ students; international students; disabled 
students; Black and racialised students; women; students from low socioeconomic 
background. This disparity is clear in terms of differences in reporting experiencing 
mental health difficulties, accessing help, having a positive experience with support 
services and ultimately health outcomes. 

In regards to Covid-19, we published research exploring the impact the pandemic 
had on student mental health - University Mental Health: Life in a Pandemic. While 
the short-term impact was stark and notable it still may yet be too early to fully 
understand what the long-term impacts and ramifications of the pandemic may be. 

The nature of the student experience means that there are many factors that can 
have an impact upon mental health which is why it’s so vital that universities have a 
strategic, holistic, whole-university approach to supporting their students. 

References: 

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/insight-briefings.html   

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/student-mental-health-in-a-pandemic.html   

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/mh-inequalities-international-students.html   

https://www.ucas.com/file/513961/download?token=wAaKRniC  

https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/mental-health-inequalities-
factsheet   

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/mh-inequalities-international-students.html 

 

2. Adnabod a darpariaeth | Identification and provision 

At Student Minds, we’re confident that Higher Education Institutions have, broadly, 
been improving in how they address student mental health, despite the scale and 
complexity of the challenges. But, while positive steps are being taken across 
institutions to improve the culture, policies and practice around student mental 
health - there is still a way to go for the sector when it comes to confidently 
supporting the scale and complexity of student mental health challenges. We’d also 
like to note that we have 60 universities signed-up to the University Mental Health 
Charter Programme this academic year (2022-23), and whilst we had great 

Tudalen y pecyn 57

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/insight-briefings.html
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/student-mental-health-in-a-pandemic.html
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/mh-inequalities-international-students.html
https://www.ucas.com/file/513961/download?token=wAaKRniC
https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/mental-health-inequalities-factsheet
https://www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/publications/mental-health-inequalities-factsheet
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/mh-inequalities-international-students.html


involvement from Welsh institutions in our development roadshow, currently none of 
those 60 are Welsh institutions. 

There is increased confidence in discussing mental health openly at university. We 
have been seeing a constant increase in rates of disclosure and help-seeking. While 
this could be perceived to be an indication of an increasing demand due to an 
increase in either scale or complexity of challenges that students are facing, these 
increases are at least in part due to a reduction in stigma, a growing confidence in 
talking about mental health, wider knowledge of services that are available to 
support students and an improvement in help-seeking behaviours and skills. 

We surveyed just over 1,000 students about how they felt about their institution's 
efforts in our research in January 2022. Our findings were that 52% of those surveyed 
agreed with the statement “The environment/culture at my university is healthy and 
allows me to thrive and succeed”. 14% disagreed and the remaining 34% were 
neutral. We’d want to see this shift over time more into agreement, as universities 
implement a whole university approach.  

In regards to early identification of students and institutions’ readiness to proactively 
support students, we think this is going to need to be an urgent focus for the sector 
in the coming years. There is an assumption and expectation that staff across 
different parts of a university are joint-up and have constructive knowledge about 
individual students - in reality it may be the case that not all staff requiring 
knowledge receive adequate training and guidance to do so, and that across 
departments staff and services aren’t communicating proactively enough to identify 
students who may be struggling at a point where an early intervention could be 
positively impactful. 

We have consistently found in our research that students most commonly seek 
mental health support from their university, but that GPs / Doctors are a close 
second. A key  issue we see students face is the challenge of continuity of support 
throughout the calendar year when students might be living between two addresses 
over the course of the calendar year, but only able to register with one GP surgery. 
We are also aware from engagement with practitioners across multiple regions in the 
UK of certain mental health conditions where waiting lists for specialist support are 
particularly high, such as for eating disorders support and wait times for ADHD 
diagnoses. Flexibility for students to be able to access healthcare is key. And quality 
information sharing between universities and services so that students don’t fall 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



through gaps is going to be vital to ensure a comprehensive support package for 
students. 

On transitions, we have a number of resources available to students - both before 
and after they start university. The University Mental Health Charter also identifies 
transitions as a key domain for institutions to focus on within their whole-university 
approach to student mental health. 

 

References:  

https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/advice-and-guidance/student-wellbeing-and-
protection/student-mental-health/mental-health-challenge-competition-improving-
mental-health-outcomes/   

https://www.ucas.com/file/513961/download?token=wAaKRniC   

https://www.universitiesuk.ac.uk/what-we-do/policy-and-
research/publications/minding-our-future-starting-conversation   

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/transitions.html   

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/universitychallenge.html  

https://www.studentminds.org.uk/grandchallenges.html   

https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/  

 

3. Polisïau, deddfwriaeth a chyllid Llywodraeth Cymru | Welsh Government 
policy, legislation and funding 

We welcome this consultation and inquiry to explore how the Welsh government 
could be further supporting student mental health. 

There have been well received efforts from the Welsh government (and in particular 
HefCW) to support students - such as the funding to support students through the 
pandemic, the innovative approaches being taken in Welsh institutions and the 
support for Student Space, Student Minds’ support platform available in English and 
Welsh language. 

Moving forwards we’re keen to ensure this continued commitment and would 
encourage the Welsh government to address the issue of student mental health 

Tudalen y pecyn 59

https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/advice-and-guidance/student-wellbeing-and-protection/student-mental-health/mental-health-challenge-competition-improving-mental-health-outcomes/
https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/advice-and-guidance/student-wellbeing-and-protection/student-mental-health/mental-health-challenge-competition-improving-mental-health-outcomes/
https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/advice-and-guidance/student-wellbeing-and-protection/student-mental-health/mental-health-challenge-competition-improving-mental-health-outcomes/
https://www.ucas.com/file/513961/download?token=wAaKRniC
https://www.universitiesuk.ac.uk/what-we-do/policy-and-research/publications/minding-our-future-starting-conversation
https://www.universitiesuk.ac.uk/what-we-do/policy-and-research/publications/minding-our-future-starting-conversation
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/transitions.html
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/universitychallenge.html
https://www.studentminds.org.uk/grandchallenges.html
https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/


strategically and holistically. Our framework for addressing student mental health, as 
set-out in the University Mental Health Charter, is to encourage a whole-university 
approach. This approach is well evidenced, strategic and will be impactful in the 
long-term. Supporting and enabling Welsh institutions to develop their policies and 
strategies in line with the good practice principles set out in the Charter would be a 
considerable step forward. 

We would also encourage the new Commission for Tertiary Education and Research 
to work collaboratively across departments in the Welsh government to address 
systemic challenges. For instance, Welsh government could further encourage and 
support NHS partners - in regions where Welsh institutions are based - to work 
collaboratively with their universities and student representatives to map out 
emerging needs and trends for the current and next generations of students and 
share how they are commissioning effectively to support and promote the health of 
this population. We are aware that some Welsh institutions are already working hard 
on building these relationships. In addition, to look at ways the Welsh government 
can mitigate the cost of living pressures and housing challenges impacting students 
which are well evidenced as having a bi-directional relationship with a students’ 
mental health.  

 

References: 

https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/   

https://wonkhe.com/blogs/creating-a-blueprint-for-supporting-student-mental-
health/   

https://gov.wales/10-million-support-university-students-through-pandemic  

 

4. Argymhellion ar gyfer newid | Recommendations for change 

Our main recommendations are as follows: 

Encourage institutions to be taking holistic, whole-university approaches to student 
mental health. Engage with the University Mental Health Charter; use the framework, 
adopt the principles of good practice and go through the awarding process.  

Encourage institutions to utilise toolkits, resources and guidance documents to 
improve practice, particularly around embedding wellbeing into the curriculum, 

Tudalen y pecyn 60

https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/
https://wonkhe.com/blogs/creating-a-blueprint-for-supporting-student-mental-health/
https://wonkhe.com/blogs/creating-a-blueprint-for-supporting-student-mental-health/
https://gov.wales/10-million-support-university-students-through-pandemic


improving accessibility and prioritising prevention & early intervention. Examples of 
recent publications include the Education for Mental Health Toolkit, UUK’s 
Information Sharing Guidance and the Student Services Partnerships Evaluation and 
Quality Standards (SPEQS) Toolkit. 

Ringfence funding to support, reactively, students with urgent needs. For example, 
having hardship funding for challenges faced during the pandemic or for the current 
cost of living crisis and long term housing challenges. 

Ensure joined-up approaches between institutions and local health care provision. 

 

References: 

https://www.advance-he.ac.uk/knowledge-hub/education-mental-health-toolkit   

https://sites.google.com/sheffield.ac.uk/universitycounsellingservice/current-
projects#h.vb40n5dmnf3   

https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/ 

 

5. Arall | Other  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 61

https://www.advance-he.ac.uk/knowledge-hub/education-mental-health-toolkit
https://sites.google.com/sheffield.ac.uk/universitycounsellingservice/current-projects#h.vb40n5dmnf3
https://sites.google.com/sheffield.ac.uk/universitycounsellingservice/current-projects#h.vb40n5dmnf3
https://universitymentalhealthcharter.org.uk/


29 September 2022 

To: Chair of the Children, Young People and Education Committee, Jayne Bryant MS 

Dear Committee Chair, 

Feminist Scorecard 2022 

We are writing to you to share key recommendations from our Feminist Scorecard 2022 that 

are relevant to the Children, Young People and Education Committee. The Feminist Scorecard 

2022, launched in July this year, tracks the Welsh Government’s progress towards advancing 

women’s rights and gender equality in six policy areas: 

● Fair Finance

● Caring Responsibilities

● Global Women’s Rights

● Equal Representation and Leadership

● Tackling Gender Health Inequalities, and

● Ending Violence Against Women and Girls

Each area is rated using a traffic light system (red, amber, and green), indicating the level of 

progress towards equality for women and girls in Wales. Your Committee portfolio crosses 

several areas and we would like to highlight actions needed to improve women's situation in 

each area below. 

Fair Finance 

Compared to the last Scorecard published in 2020, Fair Finance has regressed from amber 

to a red rating. Some positive steps, such as hybrid working, have been made but overall 

progress has been undone by the pandemic and the cost-of-living crisis. This strongly affects 

mothers and is a driving factor behind Wales’s rising levels of child poverty, especially for 

children who are raised by single parents and families who experience intersecting 

discrimination. The Scorecard recommends that the Welsh Government should:  

● Address the prevalence of women in part-time work through better investment into

childcare and social care, so that unpaid care work truly becomes a choice.

● Monitor and report annually on the effectiveness of the Economic Action and

Employability Plans and Economic Contract in narrowing the gender, ethnicity and

disability pay gaps.

Caring Responsibilities 

Like Fair Finance, the area of Caring Responsibilities has regressed from amber to red over 

the last two years. This shows the close connection between child poverty, women’s position 

in the labour market and the unequal distribution of care work in Wales. The Welsh 

Government has made positive commitments around childcare, but the pace of action does 

not reflect the urgency for change. We recommend Welsh Government:  

● Make the Childcare Offer affordable and accessible for parents of all children from six

months.

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 1

Tudalen y pecyn 62

Eitem 5.1



                                                                                                      

● Invest in nursery and early education provisions to ensure they are accessible to all 

parents who are eligible, when and where they need them. This should particularly 

address the lack of provision during atypical working hours, provisions for disabled 

children and those with additional learning needs as well as provision in rural areas. 

● Expand childcare provisions to unemployed parents to support them in seeking 

employment and to asylum seekers to allow them to take ESOL classes and prepare for 

getting refugee status. 

● Collect robust equality data as part of the evaluation and monitoring of the Childcare Offer 

to ensure equality of access and eligibility. 

● Ensure both childcare and social care as a profession is valued and improved, through 

measures like a sector-wide real living wage, better career progression, support for mental 

health & well-being of care workers. as a profession is valued and improved, through 

measures like a sector-wide real living wage, better career progression, support for mental 

health & well-being of care workers. 

 

Ending Violence Against Women and Girls 

The Welsh Government provided  swift  emergency  funding  during  the  pandemic.  However, 

there is a critical  need  for  sustainable  funding  for  specialist  services,  especially  for  

women with  no  recourse  to  public  funds,  which  scored red  in  this  section. We welcome 

the Welsh Government's commitment to coordination across policy areas like substance 

misuse, housing, social services and education, but it is critical that this is accompanied with 

a secure and sustainable funding model for Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse, and 

Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) specialist services. We recommend that the Welsh Government 

ensures that the commitment to joined-up working is reflected on the ground and consistently 

embodies a supportive, rather than punitive, approach towards mothers leaving abuse. 
 

Participants at a community launch of the Scorecard also highlighted the risk   that children 

are exposed to domestic abuse from not receive support when the mother is exposed to 

violence and demanded more investment to improve the coordination across the VAWDASV 

support system and to leave no one behind. 
           

We would be grateful for the opportunity to meet with you to discuss how we can work together 

to ensure that women and girls in Wales will not be held back for many years to come. Please 

contact Fadhilah Gubari at Oxfam Cymru to arrange a suitable date for a meeting on 

fgubari1@oxfam.org.uk.  

. 

We look forward to your response.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

                                                                       

           Sarah Rees                                                                                  Catherine Fookes     

   Head of Oxfam Cymru                                                                 Director of WEN Wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 63

mailto:fgubari1@oxfam.org.uk


 

 

3 Hydref 2022 

Y Bil Ysgolion 

Annwyl Jeremy, 

Cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor Busnes y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil Ysgolion at y 

Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg a'r Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad. 

Trafodwyd y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn ein cyfarfod ar 21 Medi.  

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech roi ychydig mwy o wybodaeth i ni am y Bil Ysgolion i lywio ein 

trafodaethau:  

Yn eich llythyr at y Llywydd dyddiedig 19 Gorffennaf 2022, gwnaethoch ddweud eich bod 

wrthi’n cynnal dadansoddiad o gymhwysedd deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â'r Bil wrth 

iddo fynd yn ei flaen. A allech chi roi unrhyw ddiweddariadau i ni ynglŷn â’ch 

canfyddiadau?  

Mae cymal 52(2) o'r Bil yn cynnwys pŵer i Lywodraeth y DU wneud rheoliadau sy'n 

cynnwys diwygiadau sy'n ganlyniadol ar ddarpariaethau'r Bil. Gellid defnyddio'r pŵer hwn i 

wneud rheoliadau sy'n cynnwys darpariaethau canlyniadol sy'n gymwys yng Nghymru ac 

nid oes dim yn y Bil a fyddai'n ei gwneud yn ofynnol i Lywodraeth y DU ymgynghori â 

Llywodraeth Cymru na chael cydsyniad Llywodraeth Cymru neu Senedd Cymru cyn arfer y 

pŵer hwn. A oes gennych unrhyw bryderon ynghylch cymal 52(2), ac os felly, pa gamau yr 

ydych yn bwriadu eu cymryd i liniaru eich pryderon?  

Rydym hefyd yn deall y bydd cyfarfod nesaf Cyngor Gweinidogion Addysg y DU yn cael ei 

gynnal gan Lywodraeth Cymru. A allwch amlinellu pryd yr ydych yn bwriadu cynnal y cyfarfod 

hwnnw, ac a ydych yn bwriadu codi’r Bil Ysgolion - gan gynnwys unrhyw bryderon sydd 

gennych am effaith y Bil ar bwerau datganoledig Cymru - yn ystod y cyfarfod hwnnw?  

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc 
ac Addysg 
— 
Children, Young People  
and Education Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565  

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 
0300 200 6565  

Jeremy Miles AS 

Gweinidog y Gymraeg ac Addysg 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 2 

Tudalen y pecyn 64

Eitem 5.2

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s129153/Llythyr%20gan%20Weinidog%20y%20Gymraeg%20ac%20Addysg%20at%20y%20Llywydd%20-%20CYPE6-17-22%20-%20Papur%20iw%20nodi%205.pdf


 

 

Ein dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflwyno adroddiad ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y 

Bil Ysgolion ar hyn o bryd yw 1 Rhagfyr. Felly, byddwn yn gwerthfawrogi cael eich ymateb erbyn 

10 Tachwedd fan bellaf fel y gallwn ni drafod eich ymateb yn ein cyfarfod ar 17 Tachwedd a 

drafftio ein hadroddiad ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol cyn y dyddiad cau ar 

gyfer cyflwyno adroddiad.  

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Huw Irranca-Davies AS, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, 

Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad.  

 

Yn gywir 

 

Jayne Bryant AS 

Cadeirydd 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



Julie Morgan AS/MS 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Deputy Minister for Social Services 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.Morgan@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Julie.Morgan@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 3 Hydref 2022 

Jayne Bryant AS 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd  
CF99 1SN 

Annwyl Jayne, 

Rwy’n ysgrifennu yn sgil ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i argymhelliad 6 o adroddiad y 
Pwyllgor ar Gyllideb ddrafft 2022-2023 Llywodraeth Cymru, a gyhoeddwyd yn gynharach 
eleni.    

Byddwch yn cofio’r argymhelliad dan sylw: Mae’n rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru nodi amserlen 
glir a manwl ar gyfer ei chynlluniau i ddiwygio gwasanaethau i blant sy’n derbyn gofal fel y 
nodir yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu a’r ymateb i Adroddiad Blynyddol Comisiynydd Plant 
Cymru. Mae’n rhaid i'r amserlen gynnwys cerrig milltir gweithredu allweddol a gofynion cyllid 
cysylltiedig. 

Rydym yn dweud yn ein hymateb i’r argymhelliad: Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn gweithio ar 
gynlluniau, gan gynnwys rhai sy’n ymwneud â chyllid ac amserlenni, er mwyn symud ymlaen 
â’r gwaith o gyflawni ymrwymiadau ein Rhaglen Lywodraethu, a gallwn ddarparu’r rhain ar 
ddyddiad yn y dyfodol. Diben y llythyr hwn yw rhoi diweddariad ichi ar hynt y cynlluniau hyn.  

Trefniadau llywodraethu newydd ar gyfer trawsnewid gwasanaethau plant.  
Rydym wedi bod yn gweithio i adolygu’r strwythur llywodraethu ar gyfer trawsnewid 
gwasanaethau plant. Mae’r gwaith hwn wedi ystyried strwythur ar gyfer y dyfodol a fydd yn 
cynnwys bwrdd goruchwylio Gweinidogol. Bydd y bwrdd yn cael ei gefnogi gan grŵp 
cyflawni newydd a fydd yn disodli’r bwrdd goruchwylio presennol, ac a fydd yn creu rhaglen 
i reoli’r gwaith o gyflawni a gweithredu ymrwymiadau’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu.  

Rydym wedi datblygu dagram sy’n amlinellu sut mae’r holl wasanaethau, ac ymrwymiadau’r 
Rhaglen Lywodraethu, yn sicrhau bod plant yn ganolog i’r diagram hwnnw.  Fe’i defnyddir i 
fireinio ein cynllun, gan amlinellu’r hyn y gellir ei gyflawni, yr hyn sy’n gyd-ddibynnol, a’r 
llinellau amser y bydd y grŵp cyflawni yn eu goruchwylio. Bydd y manylion terfynol yn cael 
eu penderfynu’r mis nesaf. Byddaf yn sicrhau bod y Pwyllgor yn cael eu diweddaru am hynt 
y cynllun hwn.  

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 3 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

Eitem 5.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.Morgan@gov.wales


Gwybodaeth am gynnal digwyddiadau yn y dyfodol i helpu i lywio’r gwaith o drawsnewid 
gwasanaethau cymdeithasol i blant.  

Bwriedir cynnal nifer o weithgareddau cyn diwedd 2022, a hoffwn ddiweddaru’r Pwyllgor yn 
eu cylch gan eu bod i gyd yn cefnogi’r gwaith sy’n mynd rhagddo. Dyma nhw:  

Roedd yr Uwchgynhadledd gyntaf ar Brofiad Gofal, ar gyfer llywio’r gwaith o 
drawsnewid gwasanaethau, i fod i gael ei chynnal ar 10 Medi ond bu’n rhaid ei haildrefnu 
oherwydd marwolaeth y Frenhines Elizabeth II. Bydd yr uwchgynhadledd yn galluogi pobl 
ifanc sydd wedi cael y profiad o fod mewn gofal i weithio gyda Gweinidogion Llywodraeth 
Cymru a’u timau ar draws portffolios i ddatblygu gweledigaeth gydlynol ar gyfer trawsnewid 
gwasanaethau, drwy ddylanwadu ar bolisi ac ar y ddarpariaeth. Mae’r uwchgynhadledd yn 
cael ei haildrefnu, a bydd yn cael ei chynnal cyn diwedd y flwyddyn galendr hon.  

Ar 4 Hydref, cynhaliwyd digwyddiad lansio i gyflwyno canlyniadau gwerthusiad interim y 
Llys Teulu Cyffuriau ac Alcohol o Gynllun Peilot Caerdydd a’r Fro a ddechreuodd 
ddechrau’r flwyddyn. Mae hon yn llys teulu amgen ar gyfer cynnal trafodion gofal plant. Ei 
nod yw gweithio gyda rhieni sydd â phroblemau sy’n gysylltiedig â chamddefnyddio 
cyffuriau ac alcohol. Yn ei thrafodion, mae’r llys yn gweithredu mewn modd sy’n ceisio 
datrys problemau, a gallai rhieni ddewis manteisio ar hyn yn hytrach na mynd drwy’r 
trafodion gofal arferol.  

Ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ar y cynigion i ddileu elw – Bydd yr ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus yn ymgynghori ar ystod o feysydd posibl ar gyfer deddfwriaeth sylfaenol, gan 
gynnwys gweithredu’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu ac ymrwymiad y Cytundeb Cydweithio i ddileu 
elw o ddarparu gofal i blant sy’n derbyn gofal. Bydd yr ymgynghoriad yn cau ar 7 Tachwedd. 
Bydd yr ymatebion yn cael eu hadolygu, a phenderfynir ar y camau nesaf ar gyfer bwrw 
ymlaen â’r gwaith hwn. 

Siarter Rhianta Corfforaethol – Mae fersiwn derfynol y siarter rhianta corfforaethol ddrafft 
yn cael ei pharatoi. Yn ystod y misoedd nesaf, byddwn yn bwrw ymlaen â’r gwaith o gynnal 
sgwrs genedlaethol. Bydd y sefydliadau a’r uwch arweinwyr sy’n ymuno â’r siarter yn 
gwneud ymrwymiad cyhoeddus clir gan ddatgan eu cefnogaeth i’r bobl ifanc sydd wedi cael 
profiad o fod mewn gofal, a thrwy hynny byddant yn atebol i sicrhau bod pob rhan o’r sector 
cyhoeddus yn cynnig cymorth gwell i’r bobl ifanc hyn. 

Rwy’n gobeithio bod yr ymateb hwn o gymorth drwy roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am hynt y 
gwaith o gefnogi’r camau a gymerir i drawsnewid gwasanaethau plant ac i gynnal y ffocws 
ar gyflawni’r ymrwymiadau yn ein Rhaglen Lywodraethu.  

Yn gywir 

Julie Morgan AS/MS 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Deputy Minister for Social Services

Tudalen y pecyn 67



Cymwysterau Cymru 
Q2 Building, Pencarn Lane 
Imperial Park,  
Casnewydd 
NP10 8AR 
 01633 373 222

Cymwysterau Cymru 
Adeilad Q2, Lôn Pencarn 

Parc Imperial 
Casnewydd 
NP10 8AR 

 01633 373 222www.cymwysteraucymru.org 

4 Hydref 2022 

Rydym yn hapus i roi rhagor o wybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor am y penderfyniadau a wnaed 

yn ymwneud â graddio yn Haf 2022 a hoffem hefyd fanteisio ar y cyfle i roi gwybod 

i’r Pwyllgor am y penderfyniad a wnaed gan y Bwrdd mewn perthynas â graddio ym 

mis Tachwedd 2022/Haf 2023. 

Wrth weithredu’r penderfyniad i ganlyniadau ddisgyn yn fras hanner ffordd rhwng y 

rhai a welwyd yn 2019 a 2021, ein bwriad bob amser oedd y dylai dyfarniadau a 

wneir o fewn y broses fod yn fwy cadarnhaol. Roedd hyn i gydnabod y cyd-destun 

penodol iawn ar gyfer dyfarniadau eleni ac i roi hyder i ddysgwyr na fyddent dan 

anfantais o gymharu â'u cyfoedion mewn mannau eraill. Fodd bynnag, tan fis 

Gorffennaf methodd yr ymrwymiad hwn i gymryd camau penodol i ganlyniadau 

bwyso tuag at y rhai a welwyd yn 2021. 

Mae'r prosesau ar gyfer dyfarnu cymwysterau TGAU, UG a Safon Uwch yn weddol 

debyg ar draws awdurdodaethau, ond mae gwahaniaethau'n bodoli. Mae’r rhain yn 

rhannol oherwydd bod y cyd-destun ar gyfer sicrhau cymaroldeb ychydig yn wahanol 

ar draws awdurdodaethau. Yng Nghymru, lle mae un corff dyfarnu (CBAC) yn darparu 

cymwysterau ‘gwneud-i-Gymru’, rydyn ni’n canolbwyntio ar gymaroldeb dros amser. 

Yn Lloegr, yn ogystal ag ystyried cymaroldeb dros amser, rhaid i Ofqual ystyried 

cymaroldeb ar draws y pedwar corff dyfarnu sy'n dyfarnu cymwysterau TGAU, UG a 

Safon Uwch.  

Wrth i waith manwl fynd rhagddo i roi’r polisi graddio ar waith yn Lloegr, daeth 

Ofqual yn bryderus bod risg y gallai’r dull a ddefnyddiwyd yno arwain at ganlyniadau 

a oedd yn is na dehongliad syml o’r pwynt canol, felly penderfynwyd ym mis 

Gorffennaf i bwysoli’r ymagwedd tuag at ganlyniadau 2021. Roedd hyn yn golygu 

bod y broses dechnegol i weithredu’r polisi ‘yn fras hanner ffordd’ wedi’i phwysoli 

60:40 tuag at 2021. 

Er ein bod yn rhan o drafodaethau yn arwain at y penderfyniad hwn, nid oeddem yn 

rhan o’r penderfyniad ei hun, a oedd yn briodol i Ofqual ei wneud gan ei fod yn 

ymwneud â dyfarniadau yn Lloegr. Roeddem yn llai pryderus y byddai’r dull a 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 4

Drwy e-bost 

Jayne Bryant AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

Annwyl Jayne 

Tudalen y pecyn 68

Eitem 5.4

https://twitter.com/quals_wales
http://qualificationswales.org/Splash
https://www.facebook.com/qualswalescymcymru/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/qualifications-wales


ddefnyddiwyd yng Nghymru yn arwain at ganlyniadau’n disgyn islaw dehongliad 

syml o ‘yn fras hanner ffordd’ ond penderfynwyd mai’r ffordd orau o ddiogelu 

buddiannau dysgwyr yng Nghymru oedd drwy adlewyrchu’r dull a ddefnyddiwyd gan 

Ofqual. Yn y pen draw, ni fyddem am i ddysgwyr yng Nghymru fod dan anfantais o 

gymharu â’u cyfoedion sy’n cymryd yr un cymwysterau yn Lloegr. Yna buom yn 

gweithio gyda CBAC i roi pwysiad tebyg ar waith tuag at ddeilliannau 2021 ar gyfer 

dysgwyr sy'n sefyll TGAU, UG a Safon Uwch gwneud-i-Gymru. 

 

Fel yr ydych wedi nodi, mae hyn yn arwain at sefyllfa ddyrys bosibl o unioni yn ôl i 

safonau cyn y pandemig yn 2023. Rydym yn rhannu pryder y Pwyllgor y dylid osgoi 

hyn ac, felly, rydyn ni'n argymell i’r Bwrdd y dylai'r dull o raddio yn 2023 anelu at 

ganlyniadau sydd hanner ffordd yn fras rhwng 2019 a 2022 - i bob pwrpas yn ceisio 

gweithredu cam pellach tuag at safonau cyn y pandemig yn 2023 yn hytrach nag 

unioni cadarn yn ôl iddynt. Wrth wneud y penderfyniad hwn fe wnaeth y Bwrdd 

ystyried: 

 

• Effaith barhaus yr amharu ar addysg oherwydd y pandemig a'r tebygrwydd y 

gallai rhywfaint o darfu oherwydd salwch a ffactorau cymdeithasol eraill 

barhau i'r flwyddyn academaidd hon 

• Y ffaith y byddai unioni llawn i safonau cyn y pandemig yn 2023 yn cyflwyno 

sefyllfa ddyrys 

• Roedd natur unedol llawer o gymwysterau yng Nghymru (yn enwedig y 

berthynas rhwng model UG a Safon Uwch ‘cypledig’) yn golygu na fyddai’n 

bosibl unioni’n llawn i safonau cyn y pandemig oherwydd y dull a 

ddefnyddiwyd yn 2022. 

 

Bu’r Bwrdd hefyd yn ystyried y safbwynt yr oedd Ofqual yn debygol o’i gymryd, sydd 

bellach wedi’i gadarnhau, y bydd cymwysterau tebyg o dan y polisi ‘gwneud-i-Loegr’ 

yn cael eu dyfarnu ar safon cyn y pandemig yn 2023, gan ddefnyddio canlyniadau yn 

2019 fel y meincnod. 

 

Mae hyn yn golygu y bydd y dulliau graddio ychydig yn wahanol ar draws 

awdurdodaethau yn 2023, tra bod Cymru’n cymryd mwy o amser i unioni’n ôl i 

safonau cyn-bandemig. Wrth wneud ei benderfyniad, myfyriodd y Bwrdd ar adborth 

cefnogol a ddarparwyd gan nifer o randdeiliaid yng Nghymru. Bu'r Bwrdd hefyd yn 

ystyried y risgiau sy'n gysylltiedig â mabwysiadu ymagwedd wahanol i Ofqual ond 

roedd o'r farn bod modd rheoli'r risgiau hyn ac nad oeddent yn gorbwyso'r 

ystyriaethau a amlinellwyd yn y pwyntiau bwled uchod. Y bwriad ar hyn o bryd yw y 

bydd unioni i safonau cyn y pandemig yng Nghymru yn 20241. 

 

 
1 Bydd rhywfaint o effaith o benderfyniadau graddio mewn lefelau UG a rhai unedau TGAU a wnaed yn 2023 ar 

ganlyniadau yn 2024. Fodd bynnag, bydd yr effaith yn fach. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Gwnaethom gyhoeddi ein penderfyniad mewn perthynas â graddio ym mis 

Tachwedd 2022 a haf 2023 ar 29 Medi – yr un diwrnod ag y cyhoeddodd Ofqual ei 

benderfyniad. Mae cynrychiolwyr rydyn ni wedi ymgysylltu â nhw o AU wedi 

croesawu’r eglurder cynnar rydyn ni wedi’i ddarparu. 

 

Gobeithiaf fod y wybodaeth hon wedi mynd i’r afael â’r pwyntiau a godwyd yn eich 

llythyr, ond mae croeso i chi gysylltu â mi os gallaf fod o unrhyw gymorth pellach. 

 

Yn gywir 

 

 

 

 

Philip Blaker  

Prif Weithredwr 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



 

 

11 Hydref 2022

Gwerthuso’r cynllun peilot incwm sylfaenol ar gyfer pobl sy’n gadael gofal 

Annwyl Jane a Julie,

Lansiwyd ein hymchwiliad i blant â phrofiad o fod mewn gofal yn ddiweddar. Bydd yr ymchwiliad yn 

canolbwyntio ar y prif flaenoriaethau ar gyfer diwygio’r system gofal: ble y gallai newidiadau wneud y 

gwahaniaeth mwyaf i fywydau plant a phobl ifanc. 

Rydym yn sylweddoli bod y cynllun peilot incwm sylfaenol ar gyfer pobl sy’n gadael gofal yn mynd 

rhagddo ar hyn o bryd a’i bod yn rhy gynnar craffu ar ei effaith. 

Fodd bynnag, byddem yn ddiolchgar pe gallech roi rhywfaint o wybodaeth ar ddechrau’r cynllun hwn 

ynghylch sut y caiff y peilot ei werthuso. Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech roi gwybodaeth am y 

canlynol:

▪ Y gwaith o gasglu data sylfaenol a fydd yn cael ei ddefnyddio i ddangos sut mae’r peilot

wedi effeithio ar fywydau’r bobl ifanc sy’n gadael gofal. Byddem yn falch o gael

gwybodaeth am yr unigolion/sefydliadau a fydd yn gweithio gyda chi yn y cyswllt hwn, a’r

cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma.

▪ Caffael y ddau ddarn o waith gwahanol, ond integredig, yn ymwneud â gwerthuso’r

cynllun peilot: y broses gyfunol a gwerthusiad o’r effaith, a’r astudiaeth ethnograffeg

ansoddol fanwl.

A fyddech cystal â rhoi'r wybodaeth hon i ni erbyn dydd Gwener 25 Tachwedd 2022 fan bellaf.

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc  
ac Addysg 
— 
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddPlant 

0300 200 6565  

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddChildren@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddChildren 
0300 200 6565  

Jane Hutt AS 

Y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 

Julie Morgan AS 

Y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 5

Tudalen y pecyn 71

Eitem 5.5

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=490&RPID=1767202394&cp=yes


 

 

Byddem yn ddiolchgar pe baech yn ein diweddaru’n gyffredinol bob chwe mis wedyn ynghylch y 

modd y mae’r cynllun peilot yn cael ei roi ar waith ac unrhyw arwyddion cynnar o’i effaith.  Yn 

benodol, byddem yn croesawu unrhyw adborth a gewch gan y rhai sy’n gadael gofal a chan 

randdeiliaid ehangach, ac – wrth gwrs – hoffem eich barn chi a swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru a 

sefydliadau sy’n gweithio mewn partneriaeth â chi i weinyddu’r peilot. 

Yn gywir, 

 

Jayne Bryant AS 

Cadeirydd 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



Eluned Morgan AS/MS, 
Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Minister for Health and Social Services 

Julie Morgan AS/MS, 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Deputy Minister for Social Services 

Lynne Neagle AS/MS, 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Iechyd Meddwl a Llesiant 
Deputy Minister for Mental Health and Wellbeing 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Russell George AS,  
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru 

Jane Bryant AS,  
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru 

     11 Hydref 2022 

Annwyl Gadeiryddion  

Diolch am eich llythyr ar 11 Gorffennaf a’r e-bost dilynol gan y Clerc dyddiedig 28 Medi. 

Erbyn hyn, mewn rhai achosion, mae’r sefyllfa wedi newid ers y cais a amlinellir yn y llythyr 
ar y cyd gwreiddiol gan y Pwyllgorau, a hynny gan fod nifer o ddogfennau wedi’u hanfon 
eisoes. O ganlyniad, roeddem o’r farn y byddai’n ddefnyddiol pe baem yn nodi’r sefyllfa 
bresennol a’n dull arfaethedig o symud ymlaen, yn enwedig gan ein bod, mewn rhai 
achosion, wedi ymrwymo eisoes i adrodd yn rheolaidd i’r Pwyllgorau.  

Y sefyllfa ar hyn o bryd yw bod y ceisiadau a ganlyn wedi’u cyflawni: 

• cafodd diweddariad ar ddarparu gofal iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol ar yr ystad
carchardai i oedolion ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol ar 2 Medi.

Bae Caerdydd Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf 
 First Point of Contact Centre:

E-bost  E-mail:
Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.

cymru 
Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@

gov.wales 
Ffôn  Tel: 0300 0604400 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. 

CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur i'w nodi 6

Tudalen y pecyn 73

Eitem 5.6

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddPlant@senedd.cymru
mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales


• cafodd y papur tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig cyn gwaith craffu cyffredinol y Pwyllgor Iechyd a 
Gofal Cymdeithasol ei gyflwyno ar 1 Medi. Roedd cwmpas eang a chymhlethdod y cais 
wedi sbarduno ymateb strategol, ond byddwn yn fodlon iawn ymdrin ag unrhyw fanylion 
o fewn y penawdau pynciol a amlinellodd y Pwyllgor yn ein sesiwn ar 6 Hydref.   

 
• cafodd y papur tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig cyn y sesiwn graffu Weinidogol ar gyfer 

ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol i anghydraddoldebau iechyd 
meddwl ei gyflwyno ar 22 Medi. Roeddem yn falch o fynychu’r sesiwn ei hun ar 28 
Medi, pan fu modd inni ateb cwestiynau pellach a phenodol gan aelodau’r Pwyllgor.  

 
Cafwyd cais ychwanegol ar y cyd gan y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol a’r Pwyllgor 
Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg am yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am amryw o argymhellion mewn 
perthynas â’r ymchwiliadau a ganlyn a gynhaliwyd yn nhymor blaenorol y Senedd: 
Unigrwydd ac unigedd (Rhagfyr 2017); Y defnydd o feddyginiaeth wrthseicotig mewn 
cartrefi gofal (Mai 2018); ‘Busnes Pawb’: atal hunanladdiad (Rhagfyr 2018); Iechyd meddwl 
yng nghyd-destun plismona a dalfa’r heddlu (Hydref 2019); Effaith COVID-19, a’r modd y 
mae’n cael ei reoli, ar iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol yng Nghymru: yr effaith ar iechyd meddwl 
a llesiant (Rhagfyr 2020); Iechyd meddwl amenedigol yng Nghymru (Hydref 2017) ac Iechyd 
meddwl amenedigol – gwaith dilynol; ‘Cadernid Meddwl’ (Hydref 2018) a ‘Cadernid Meddwl: 
ddwy flynedd yn ddiweddarach’ (Hydref 2020).  
 
Ymrwymwyd yn flaenorol i roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf yn rheolaidd i’r ddau Bwyllgor am y 
mwyafrif o’r ymchwiliadau hyn, a byddwch yn gwybod ein bod wedi darparu diweddariadau 
ysgrifenedig o sylwedd yn ddiweddar ynghylch ‘Busnes Pawb’: atal hunanladdiad, iechyd 
meddwl amenedigol, a darparu gofal iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol ar yr ystad carchardai i 
oedolion.  
 
O ran y ceisiadau niferus eraill, yn arbennig gan nad oes unrhyw ymrwymiad i ddarparu 
diweddariadau ysgrifenedig achlysurol, mae cyfle hefyd, wrth gwrs, inni roi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgorau ac ateb cwestiynau drwy gydol y flwyddyn, fel rhan o’r sesiynau 
craffu cyffredinol a drefnir.  
 
Yn gywir  

 
Eluned Morgan AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Iechyd a 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol  
Minister for Health and Social 
Services 

 

 
 
Lynne Neagle AS/MS 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Iechyd 
Meddwl a Llesiant 
Deputy Minister for Mental 
Health and Wellbeing 
 

 
 
Julie Morgan AS/MS 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog 
Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol  
Deputy Minister for Social 
Services 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 74


	Agenda
	2 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	y Ganolfan Iechyd Meddwl  - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 1 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Aneurin Bevan University Health Board - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Hywel Dda University Health Board  CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 3 (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	Coleg Brenhinol yr Ymarferwyr Cyffredinol - CYPE(6)-22-20 - Papur 5 (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Cymorth iechyd meddwl mewn addysg uwch - sesiwn dystiolaeth 5
	Student Minds - CYPE(6)-20-22 - Papur 7 (Saesneg yn unig)

	5.1 Blaenraglen Waith
	5.2 Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Ysgolion
	5.3 Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23
	5.4 Cyfres arholiadau'r Haf 2022
	5.5 Gwasanaethau i blant sydd wedi bod mewn gofal: archwilio diwygio radical
	5.6 Blaenraglen Waith



